Mr S Hearse
Chief Executive
Torridge District Council
Riverbank House
Bideford
Devon
EX39 2QG
DX 53606 BIDEFORD
Tel : Bideford (01237) 428700
Date:

8 October 2021

MEETING OF COMMUNITY & RESOURCES
COMMITTEE
On:

Monday 18 October 2021

At:

Venue:

Caddsdown Business Support Centre, Clovelly Road, Bideford - Bideford

10.00 am

NOTICE OF MEETING

From the 7 May 2021, the law requires all councils to hold formal meetings in person. The
Council is also required to follow Government guidance and ensure that all venues used
are Covid secure and that all appropriate measures are put in place. Members of the public
will be able to attend the meeting in person if they are registered to speak under public
participation. Any members of the public who want to view the meeting will be able to watch
through the Councils YouTube Channel https://tinyurl.com/TorridgeYouTube
To:

Councillor R Hicks (Chair)
Councillor A Dart (Vice-Chair)
Councillors: D Brenton, C Bright, D Bushby, P Christie, C Hodson, D Hurley,
K James, N Laws, R Lock and D McGeough

Members are requested to turn off their mobile phones for the duration of the meeting

AGENDA
PART I - (OPEN SESSION)
1.

Apologies for Absence
To receive apologies for absence from the meeting.

2.

Minutes of the Community & Resources Committee meeting held on 6
September 2021 (Pages 4 - 8)

3.

Action List (Page 9)

4.

Public Contributions
Public contributions in accordance with the current scheme. (The deadline for
registering to speak is by 2pm Thursday 14 October 2021. To register please email
dem.services@torridge.gov.uk).

5.

Forward Plan (Page 10)

6.

Declarations of Interest
Members with interests to declare should refer to the Agenda item and describe the
nature of their interest when the item is being considered.

7.

Agreement of Agenda between Parts I and II

8.

Urgent Matters of information to be brought forward with the permission of the
Chair and the Committee

9.

Councillor Community Grants Scheme (Pages 11 - 14)
To receive the report of the Head of Communities & Place

10. S106 Grant Funding Application - Avon Lane Park, Westward Ho! (Pages 15 60)
To receive the report of the Planning Manager
11. Update - Funding request from the Plough (Pages 61 - 64)
To receive the report of the Finance Manager & S151 Officer
12. Minutes of Harbour Board (Pages 65 - 69)
To receive the minutes of the Harbour Board meeting held on 23 September 2021.
13. Exclusion of the Public
The Chair to move:
That the public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting because of the likely
disclosure of exempt information by virtue of paragraph 3 of Part I and paragraph 10
of Part 2 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.
14. PART II (CLOSED SESSION)
15. Levelling Up Fund Scheme Update (Pages 70 - 76)
To receive the report of the Head of Communities & Place
16. Bideford Business Park Land Acquisition (Pages 77 - 81)
To receive the report of the Head of Communities & Place
Meeting Organiser: Sandra Cawsey

Agenda Item 2
1

TORRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL
COMMUNITY & RESOURCES MEETING
Caddsdown Business Support Centre, Clovelly Road, Bideford - Bideford
Monday, 6 September 2021 - 6.00 pm

PRESENT

Councillor R Hicks (Chair)
Councillor A Dart (Vice-Chair)
Councillors P Christie, C Hodson, D Hurley, K James, N Laws
and R Lock

ALSO PRESENT

S Hearse
S Dorey
S Kearney
J Williams
S Cawsey

- Chief Executive
- Head of Legal & Governance (Monitoring
Officer)
- Head of Communities & Place
- Public Health & Housing Manager
- Democratic Services Officer

Councillors P Hames and C Leather

160.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
There were no apologies for absence received.

161.

MINUTES OF THE COMMUNITY & RESOURCES COMMITTEE MEETING
HELD ON 9 AUGUST 2021
It was proposed by Councillor Lock, seconded by Councillor James and Resolved: That the Minutes of the meeting held on 9 August 2021 be agreed.
(Vote: For - Unanimous)
Matters Arising –
Councillor Lock asked if Officers had spoken to Geoffrey Cox MP regarding
Members concerns in the rise of house prices locally.
The Chief Executive confirmed that the Leader, Deputy Leader and himself had
met with the MP on 20 August, when Members concerns were relayed to him.
This was followed up with a range of information and questions the MP had in
terms of Torridge’s specific statistics and these were provided to him.

Page 3

2

162.

ACTION LIST
The Action list was reviewed and updated.
Minute No 158
It was confirmed that the Public Health & Housing Manager had sent an email to
Councillor Bushby with the information requested.
Following a request from Councillor Christie, the information was shared with the
Committee. The Public Health & Housing Manager advised the information had
been provided to Geoffrey Cox MP, and that currently there are approximately 820
in Torridge on the latest Devon Home Choice Register but this changes monthly.
During the discussion that followed, the following concerns/comments were made:


The housing situation will not get any better and the situation should be
reviewed now.



The number on the waiting list – the Public Health & Housing Manager
advised that the list includes house swaps and not all on the list would be
considered priority need. The vast majority are in housing and just looking
to move.



Developers to look at building single smaller units – should this be looked at
in the Local Plan when identifying smaller areas.



Emergency accommodation – figures were not too hand as these change on
a weekly basis. The Public Health & Housing Manager will provide figures.



How many are in desperate need for housing? The Chief Executive
explained this is a matter that is included in the Council’s QBR which is
reviewed at Internal O&S. The Public Health & Housing Manager will be
reporting back to Internal O&S. It is work in hand.

The Chief Executive said Members will be aware that the Council have started
looking at work on housing, and a report will be brought to Full Council on the 1
November. It will be looking at those options where the Council may be able to or
wish to intervene in the position of affordable housing.
163.

PUBLIC CONTRIBUTIONS
There were no public contributions.

164.

FORWARD PLAN
Following an enquiry from Councillor Christie, the Head of Communities & Place
gave the following update on Isaac’s Yard:

Page 4

3





No further update on the funding bid. Indication was the Authority would
hear in the Autumn.
The valuation report had been returned and Officers have attempted to reopen negotiations with the primary landowner of the site, but his preference
was to do more investigation work in advance of those negotiations.
The Development Management Team have been progressing the proposals
put forward for the planning application, but no application had yet been
submitted.

The Forward Plan was noted.
165.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Declarations of interest were made when the specific agenda items to which they
related were under discussion.

166.

AGREEMENT OF AGENDA BETWEEN PARTS I AND II
There were no Part II items.

167.

URGENT MATTERS OF INFORMATION TO BE BROUGHT FORWARD WITH
THE PERMISSION OF THE CHAIR AND THE COMMITTEE
There were no urgent matters brought forward.

168.

BIOSPHERE NATURE RECOVERY PLAN & DECLARATION
The Public Health & Housing Manager presented the report, the purpose of which
was to make Members aware that the North Devon Biosphere had published a
Nature Recovery Plan, and to seek approval to sign the Declaration.
Following the presentation Councillor Christie referred to a planning application in
Westward Ho! where the off set was to be in his Ward. He had not been informed
of this and asked if the Planning Department could inform Councillors of the plans
for their Ward.
During the discussion there were concerns raised regarding the signing up to the
Declaration. The primary concern raised was regarding the impact this could have
on the agricultural community. The Public Health & Housing Manager addressed
the concern stating that the Biosphere have a good record of working with the
agricultural sector. This is about sustainable farming and not stopping farming
working in a different way.
Following comments made that there is nothing binding in it, the Public Health &
Housing Manager stated It is not binding but it is about aspirations in all the
different areas that we can all be involved in.
It was proposed by Councillor James, seconded by Councillor Christie and –
Resolved:

Page 5

4

1. That authorisation be given for the Sustainability and Climate Officer
to respond to the draft Nature Recovery Plan by endorsing and
supporting the proposed vision and actions within it.
2. That the Nature Recovery Declaration be signed and the associated
actions identified for Councils be progressed.
3. That all members and staff be encouraged to pledge their support for
this Declaration as individuals, and to share it with their family and
friends where appropriate.
(Vote: For 5, Against 3)
169.

FRESHSPRING BOND
In the absence of the Operational Services Manager, the Head of Communities &
Place presented the report, the purpose of which was for Members to consider the
recommendation of the Bideford Harbour Board Working Group to return a £3,000
bond to the SS Freshspring Society to enable further improvements to the ship.
During the discussion and following comments in relation to insurance, the Head of
Legal & Governance advised that insurance is separate from the bond and
confirmed that with all mooring arrangements it had been stipulated insurance must
be in place.
It was proposed by Councillor Hicks, seconded by Councillor Christie and Resolved:
1. That the £3,000 bond be returned to the Freshspring Trust on the condition
that annual inspections /surveys are undertaken by the trust and the Harbour
Master to ensure the vessel does not deteriorate which would be to the
detriment to the harbour area. Condition reports to be presented at the end
of the reporting year to the Bideford Harbour Board Working Group.
2. That the Council reserve the right to insist that the bond be reinstated for the
ship to remain in the Harbour area if any defects are not rectified within a
defined time scale.
(Vote: For – Unanimous)

170.

LEISURE CONTRACTOR PRICING PROPOSALS 2021/22
The purpose of the report, presented by the Head of Communities &
Place, was for Members to determine and agree the proposed 2021/2022 pricing
arrangements of its Leisure Contractors 1610.
It was proposed by Councillor Laws, seconded by Councillor James and -

Page 6

5

Resolved:
That the proposed price increases for 2021/2022 as set out in Appendix 1
attached to the report, not be agreed.
(Vote: For – Unanimous)

The meeting commenced at 18.00 and closed at 18.50.

Chair:

Date:

Page 7

COMMUNITY & RESOURCES COMMITTEE – 6 September 2021
Minute
No.
168

Action
Biosphere Nature Recovery
Plan & Declaration

Page 8

Cllr Christie referred to a
Planning app in Westward
Ho! with Off Set in his Ward.
He knew nothing about this
and asked if Planning
Department could inform
Cllrs of what is planned for
their Ward.
SMT – 29.9.21 – Response
to be sent to Cllr Christie

By Who
Jan W

Date
Contacted

Comments
At SMT 20.09.21 action ongoing as
JW on annual leave.
At SMT 29.9.21 – response to be
sent to Cllr Christie

Completed

Agenda Item 3

ACTION LIST

COMMUNITY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE FORWARD PLAN – 2021/22
Leadership

8 June 21

13 July 21

24 August 21

12 Oct 21

23 Nov 21

11 Jan 22

1 March 22

5 April 22

Community
& Resources
(Mondays)
Finance

28 June 21

26 July 21
2 August 2021

6 Sept 21

18 Oct 21

6 Dec 21

24 Jan 22

14 March 22

25 April 22

Pensions
Discretion Policy
(DH)

Additional
Restriction Grant
Business Support
Proposal (SK)

Nature Recovery
plan (Jan W)

Isaac’s Yard
(Planning App if
Bid successful)
(SK)

Bideford Football
Club (AR)

Bradworthy –
Public toilets (AR)

The Globe –
financial decision
(CF/SK)

Devon Carbon
Plan (JW/DS) –
see KB

Banning of live
animals as prizes
on TDC land

Budget Special
31 Jan 33

Performance
Other

Westward Ho!
Hotel site –
Amend Covenant
(temporary bar)
(SD)

Rec from Int O&S
re: Surplus – to be
set aside for
leisure service

ND Recovery
Prospectus

Afghan Relocation
Scheme (SH)

Page 9

Urgent Decisions
– Welcome Back
Fund
Leadership only

1610 Charge
Increases

The Plough –
Financial Viability
(DH)
LEADERSHIP
ONLY - Business
Plan – Property
Councillor
Community
Grants
S106 Westward
Ho! Park

PART II
Rec. from Harbour
Board
Re: Moorings
Hatchmoor Land
Disposal

PART II
Bideford Land
acquisition - EC

Agenda Item 5

Strategic Plan
2020-2023
Delivery Plan + 5
Business Plans
(Jon W)

Rec. from
Harbour Board
re return of Bond
to Fresh Spring
(RH)

Agenda Item 9
Agenda Item
Report of :

Head of Communities and Place

To:

Community and Resources Committee

Subject

Councillor Community Grants Scheme
18th October 2021

Date

PURPOSE OF REPORT:
To have members consider the equal distribution between all ward Councillors of the 2020/21
Councillor grant underspend to be used in the year 21/22.
1.

INTRODUCTION

As the scheme stands at the beginning of each financial year members is allocated £2,000 that they
can use to assist eligible community projects, groups and organisations.
2.

REPORT

Of the £72,000 allocated to the scheme in 20/21, at the end of July annual cut off point for spend, a
balance of £22,170 was remaining in the budget.
Although there are many possible uses for these funds, the simplest solution appears to be the
equal distribution of £22,170 underspend between all 36 ward members.
This will mean that for the financial year 2021/22 each Cllr will be allocated an additional £615. This
will give each Councillor a budget of £2,615 to support projects and organisations in line with the
following agreed rules of the scheme:
Aims of the scheme:
• To enhance the role of Ward Members as Community Champions, providing you with the
tools to support local groups in your communities and become more involved in local projects.
• Provide an opportunity for Ward Members to support projects you know meet identified
local needs.
• Enable projects to secure funding when they don’t meet the criteria and priorities of other
funding programmes.
• Provide a quick and easy, accessible pot to enable projects to get off the ground.
What is it for?
• Projects and activities that benefit the residents of your ward.
• One-off items of revenue or capital expenditure.
Grants may be used to partly or fully fund items of benefit to communities where there is no
overseeing local voluntary committee suitable, by virement or payment of an agreed amount
(between the councillor and responsible officers) from the individual Councillor grant fund budget to
appropriate TDC service budget or provider.

Page 10

In special circumstances grants can be made via internal virement/budget journal, where
there is no suitable overseeing local body.
What/Who is not eligible?
•
Retrospective funding.
•
Twinning activities that take place in appropriate Wards, and support local community events
with open access, are eligible. Grants cannot be awarded for twinning activities outside of the UK.
•
Grants direct to Parish Councils are eligible only for projects outside their core
responsibilities. Activities which would normally be funded by precept monies are not eligible.
•
Repeat funding for the same project.
•
Activities contrary to Council policies.
•
Activities which the authority has no legal powers to fund.
•
Political activity.
•
Hospitality.
•
Donations to charitable organisations.
•
Commercial organisations.
•
Grants that seek to cover core organisational costs such as employees, rent, utility costs, will
not be considered. Costs to support the work of volunteers will be considered.
•
Grants for activities that promote religious beliefs. However, for the avoidance of doubt
religious organisations can receive grants for the community and social aspects of their activity,
where they do not restrict access to the project from their own religion, or other religions.
Who can apply?
•
Any group based within your ward, or beyond the ward where their activities benefit the
residents of that ward, e.g. voluntary and community groups, schools, and clubs.
•
The group does not have to be a registered charity but will need to have a bank account (or
identify another organisation who can act as banker for funds). The group will also require a
constitution, terms of reference or a set of rules.
•
Groups/projects will need to prove the funding is needed (e.g. through supplying accounts,
current bank account, where possible.
•
Grants are not available to an individual.
How much is available?
•
Cllrs can offer grants of up to £2,000. You can award the whole £2,000 to one project, or
break the fund down into smaller grants to a number of different projects. The minimum award for
each individual grant is £100.
•
Cllrs can offer up to 100% of the total project costs.
•
Evidence of other funding (secured or applied for) must be demonstrated.
Councillor Community Grants Application Process.
Members should hold an initial discussion with the applicant to determine the nature of the
organisation, and the proposed project. If it is decided to award a grant the following actions are
required:
1.
Part A of the application form should be completed and signed by the applicant. The
applicant must provide a copy of the organisation’s constitution or governance document and proof
that a bank account has been set up in the organisation’s name.
2.
Part B of the application should be signed by Members, or a confirmation e-mail supporting
the application sent to North Devon+.
3.
Members must provide any details of declaration of interest on the application form.
4.
The completed application form should then be forwarded to the North Devon +.

Page 11

Funds must have been defrayed by the 31/07 in each year and any remaining balance after
that point will be declared as an underspend on the budget.

3.

IMPLICATIONS

Legal Implications
None.
Financial Implications
Within existing budget.
Human Resources Implications
None
Sustainability Implications
None
Equality/Diversity
Incorporated into the eligibility criteria for the Councillor Community Grants Scheme
Risk Management
There is a risk that organisations could make application to the Councillor Grant fund in order to
relieve themselves of financial exposure to projects that they wish to support. This might come at
the expense of other eligible groups and projects with a community. This risk can be mitigated by
the careful management of the grant scheme by Cllrs and Officers who are able to decide on the
eligibility of an application and it’s accordance with the rules of the scheme.
Compliance with Policies and Strategies
The Councillor Community Grants Scheme helps to engage and empower communities
Ward Member and Lead Member Views
Date of Consultation – 06/10/21
Cllr Cottle Hunkin – Lead Member
4.

CONCLUSIONS

Following discussion with the Leader and Deputy Leader it was agreed that the following
recommendation would be made to committee. The recommendation is made in recognition that
20/21 was an extraordinary year with reduced community activity and events because of the covid
pandemic. By agreeing the recommendation no precedent is set for the treatment of any
underspend in future years.

Page 12

5.

RECOMMENDATION

That Members approve the distribution of the 20/21 Councillor Grants underspend equally between
all 36 ward members for use (in line with the Cllr Grants scheme guidance) in the 21/22 financial
year.
SUPPORTING INFORMATION
Consultations: Cllr Cottle Hunkin – Lead Member
Date of Consultation – 06/10/21
Comments - “The councillor community grants scheme is such a brilliant way for us as
councillors to directly support our communities. It enables us to assist a vast array of
projects and groups and I fully support the recommendation to divide last year’s underspend
between councillors to give additional funding for this year’s grants. Covid has meant that
most, if not all community groups have had to postpone their events and fundraisers, and so
this extra funding will be a welcome boost as we come out of life in lockdown.”
Officers Consulted Chief Executive, Head of Legal and Governance, S151 Officer.
Contact Officer: Sean Kearney

Page 13

Agenda Item 10
REPORT OF

Planning Manager

To:

Community and Resources Committee

Subject:

S106 Grant Funding Application – Avon Lane Park, Westward Ho!

Date:

1st October 2021

Reference:

PURPOSE OF REPORT:
For Members to consider an application for S106 Grant Funding from Northam Town Council in
relation to replacement play facilities at Avon Lane Park, Westward Ho!

1.

INTRODUCTION
Under S106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, as amended, contributions can be
sought from developers towards the costs of providing community and social infrastructure,
the need for which has arisen as a result of a new development taking place. This funding is
commonly known as 'Section 106'.
Officers have received an application from Northam Town Council for £34549 of S106 Grant
Fund to replace play facilities thereby providing a safe and well-equipped play area for
children. Whilst the decision for allocation to S106 funds is ordinarily taken by Officers, the
TDC S106 Fund Guidance states that it may be necessary on occasions for Community &
Resource Committee to be part of the decision making process. Given that the application
seeks the full amount of S106 obligations currently held by TDC for recreation in this area,
and the specified purpose laid out within each S106 agreement allows for the obligations to
be directed to any play/recreation provision in the area, it is considered appropriate for this
matter to be considered by this Committee.
This report sets out the assessment criteria for this application and recommendation.

2.

REPORT
Assessment Criteria
Torridge District Councils S106 grant scheme is open to all community based organisations
that operate on a not-for-profit basis in Torridge District. Such Community based
organisations can apply for the funding which has not been allocated internally to Capital
Projects by the District Council.
The Community facilities provided must be open to the general public with no or very limited
membership restrictions in relation to the Equality Act 2010, and have wide public and
community benefit.
To be eligible for funding, the applicant organisation must have a constitution or set of rules,
demonstrate that they have consulted facility users/the local community, provide any other
evidence of need for the project, and have the written support of the local Town or Parish
Council.
Torridge District Council is the accountable body for the spending of S106 monies and
therefore must ensure that:

Page 14





The funding is spent on facilities that can be demonstrated to be required because of
the new development taking place;
The process is transparent and fair to all;
Projects supported are necessary, viable, will deliver the required social and
community benefits, and will be well managed.

When assessing proposed projects, criteria to be considered include:









The eligibility of the organisation and project for S106 funding.
Ownership of the asset and whether consent is in place for any works.
Endorsement of the local Town or Parish Council.
Ward Member comments
Evidence of need for the project (e.g. supported by robust third party evidence,
identified as a priority in a Parish Plan, community consultation).
An increase and/or broader in usage of the asset as a result of awarding the funding
where applicable (i.e. a greater number of people will use the facility or use by
disabled people, older or younger people who may not have had access previously).
That a complete funding package is in place with the offer of a S106 grant.
That there is financial sustainability for the asset into the future.

Available S106 Funds
Within the area of Westward Ho!. Torridge District Council currently hold the following
relevant S106 funds:
Planning Reference
1/0836/2013/FUL
1/1068/2016/FULM
1/0586/2016/FULM

Address
Fourwinds
Cornborough Road,
Westward Ho!
Land at Pebbleridge
Road, Westward Ho!,
Roslyn Gardens,
Westward Ho!

Amount (£)
5872

Specified Purpose
Play provision in
area of site

10745

Off site recreation
contribution
Recreation in the
vicinity of the site

18022

These funds have not been allocated internally to any Capital projects by TDC.
Assessment
In order for a project to be eligible to draw from S106 funds, it must firstly be ensured that
the project complies with the stipulations placed within the S106 legal agreement prior to the
benefits of the proposal being considered. In this instance, the amounts held by TDC
originates from three separate S106 agreements as detailed above. It is considered that
given the central location of the Avon Lane Park within Westward Ho!, and the specified
purpose of the obligations, the proposal accords with the S106 agreements allowing funds to
be directed towards this project.
The application form (appended to this report) clearly outlines the project, project outcomes,
project management, funding streams and quotes. No competing formal applications for
funding have been received relating to the particular planning obligations listed above from
any other ‘not for profit’ organisations or relating to any other projects within the immediate
area.

Page 15

3.

IMPLICATIONS
Legal Implications
In accordance with the S106 Funds application procedure, before any S106 monies are
released to delivery organisations, a legal funding agreement will need to be entered into.
Financial Implications
The proposal will result in the total amount of £34549 of S106 obligations held by TDC being
transferred to Northam Town Council as the delivery organisation.
Human Resources Implications
Not applicable.
Sustainability/Biodiversity Implications
Not applicable.
Equality/Diversity
The proposal includes equipment that is accessible to all.
Risk Management
Not applicable.
Compliance with Policies and Strategies
The proposal is considered to accord with the TDC S106 Grant funding guidance notes and
accords with the communities, health and housing theme of the Strategic Plan 2020-2023.
Data Protection (GDPR) Implications
Not applicable.
Climate Change
No climate change implications.
Ward Member and Lead Member Views
Date of Consultation – 21st September 2021
Councillor Hodson –
“TDC transferred the Park to NTC after their examination of the NTC Business Plan.
This plan identified the budget available including the Section 106 funds set aside for the
Park as advised by Rachel Webdell.
TDC did not raise any challenge to the Section 106 funding assumption and accepted and
validated the Business Plan.”
Councillor Cottle-Hunkin –
“I would like to let the committee know that I am fully supportive of the 106 funds going
towards the play facilities at Westward Ho! Park, Avon Lane. The local community and
councillors worked so hard to save their park, and it is fantastic that they will now be able to
transform it into something very special which will really be enjoyed by everyone, locals and
visitors alike. I hope this will see unanimous support by councillors on the C&R committee”

Page 16

4.

CONCLUSIONS
Given the information supplied, the application is considered to accord with the assessment
criteria, with the proposal bringing clear wider community benefits to the area. The proposal
will enhance an existing community recreational and play facility providing high quality
opportunity for play and social interaction for children and young people.
In addition, if the Council were still in ownership of the Park the requested sum would have
been used for it’s improvements and maintenance without the requirement for a committee
decision. It is therefore logical to recommend that the funds are made available to Northam
Town Council for those same purposes.

5.

RECOMMENDATIONS
That a funding agreement is entered into in order to release the amount of £34549 to
Northam Town Council.

SUPPORTING INFORMATION
Consultations:

Date of Consultation – 6th October 2021
Officers Consulted – Steve Hearse, Sean Kearney, Stacie Dorey.

Contact Officer:

Shaun Harrington

Page 17

Page 18

Page 19

Page 20

Page 21

Page 22

Page 23

Page 24

Page 25

Page 26

Page 27

Page 28

Page 29

Page 30

Page 31

Page 32

Page 33

Page 34

Page 35

Page 36

Page 37

Page 38

Page 39

Page 40

Page 41

Page 42

Page 43

Page 44

Page 45

Page 46

Page 47

Page 48

Page 49

Page 50

Page 51

Page 52

Page 53

Page 54

Page 55

Page 56

Page 57

Page 58

Page 59

Agenda Item 11
REPORT OF

Section 151 Officer

To:

Community and Resources Committee

Subject:

Update – Funding Request from the Plough

Date:

19th October 2021

Reference:

PURPOSE OF REPORT:
To update members on the latest financial position of the Plough Theatre, Torrington following on
from the decision made by Community and Resources on the 7th September 2020 to support the
Plough with a one off grant contribution of £25,000.
1.

INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND


In February 2020 members were made aware of the financial problems facing the
Plough Arts Centre in Great Torrington. At a meeting of the Community and
Resources committee on the 17th February members were keen to stress the value
of the Plough to the local economy and cultural landscape of the District. The Plough
subsequently received a letter of support from both Torrington Town Council and
Geoffrey Cox MP for Torridge and West Devon.



At the Community and Resources meeting on the 16th March 2020 members agreed
to provide one off support to the Plough of £25,000 for the financial year 2020/21,
subject to the Plough obtaining matched funding towards their running costs
namely:
Great Torrington Town and Lands Charity
Devon County Council
North Devon District Council

£ 10k
£ 10k
£ 5k

And that the Plough would work in conjunction with the Council to ascertain the
requirements for and affordability of additional financial assistance in future years.


A further update report was presented to Community & Resources on the 7th
September 2020, which detailed the measures undertaken by the Plough as a result
of being forced to closed in response to the Covid-19 pandemic.



C&R also confirmed the provision of £25k funding to the Plough for the financial year
2020/21 despite the matching funding detailed in the report of the 16th March not
being fully realised. C&R further resolved that this matter be included on the Forward
Plan for September 2021 for Members to consider whether to release a further
£25,000.



The report also detailed the measures the Plough had undertaken to address their
financial situation:
o
o
o
o

Application for National Lottery Funding
Application to the Government’s Culture Recovery Fund
Issuing of Redundancy notices
Minimization of costs

Page 60

2.

REPORT
As with all live theatres the Plough was forced to close as a result of Covid-19 lockdown with
effect from the 17th March 2020. With the lifting of Covid-19 restrictions live events at the
Plough has recommenced with effect from September 2021. With the reopening of the
Plough and a return to a more normal operating environment it is now an opportune time for
the Council and the Plough to ascertain the requirements for and the affordability of
additional financial assistance in future years.
To this end Torridge’s Section 151 officer has liaised with the Plough Operations manager to
gain a fuller understanding of the current financial position of the Plough. The key points of
which are detailed below:


The Plough’s budget for 2021/22 shows a budgeted surplus of £13k (before
setting aside surplus funds to reserves.)
o The surplus is after receiving the following grant monies
 Art Council Covid Emergency Funding £40k
 Business Support – Restart Grants
£16k



For the period April to July 2021 the Plough has generated a surplus of £21k,
however during this period the Plough received £44k “Covid” support grant
funding - £28k from the Culture Recovery fund and £16k in restart grants. Without
this funding it would have incurred a deficit of £23k.



The balance sheet for the Plough as at the 31st July 2021 shows cash held in its
bank accounts at £365k.
o
o
o

3.

£78k is held in restricted funds; i.e. they are tied to specified grant funding
and must be spent on specified purposes and can’t be utilised to support
the day to day operation of the Plough.
£57k being held in designated funds as determined by the Plough (e.g.
Closure Contingency Fund)
£213k being held in unrestricted funds, available to support the day to day
operation of the Plough.



At the time of writing this report the 2020/21 final accounts for the Plough were
not available.



It is anticipated that the Plough’s business plan will be completed in December
2021



The report to Community and Resources in September referred to officers from
Torridge working in conjunction with the Plough to assess their business plan and
the on-going viability of the Plough. The Plough’s business plan is projected to be
completed by December 2021.



In addition to the £25k provided by Torridge Council in 2020, the Plough has
received £93,004 in Central government funding (Business Support grants and
Arts Council Covid recovery monies) during the Covid-19 pandemic restrictions.

Implications
Legal Implications
None.

Page 61

Human Resources
None
Financial Implications
Detailed within the report
Sustainability / Biodiversity Implications
None
Equality and Diversity
None
Risk Management
None
Data Protection (GDPR) Implications
None
Lead Member View – Councillor Bob Hicks
Date of Consultation – 30/09/2021
It is encouraging that as the Plough starts to return to some form of pre Covid normality that
it is currently holding healthy cash balances. It is recognised that the last financial year has
been an exceptional one with the Plough predominately closed throughout whilst receiving
various tranches of Governmental grant support.
As the Plough’s business plan is not anticipated to be available until December 2021, any
consideration of further Torridge support to the Plough would be premature at this juncture.
Ward Member View – Councillor Cottle-Hunkin
Date of Consultation – 07/10/2021
As lead member for Community Culture and Leisure, and also ward member for Great
Torrington, I would like to highlight the importance of The Plough Arts Centre for our
community in Torridge and beyond. It is a multi-functioning Arts Hub loved by all ages and
walks of life. This facility is crucial, now more then ever, while we all try to adjust to life after
living for so long in lockdown.
I’m so pleased that The Plough received enough support to allow it to reopen, and of course
would like to see the council showing their continued support for this vital asset; but I accept
that it would make sense for a financial decision on funding to be deferred until The Plough’s
business plan is read.”
4.

Conclusion
Based upon the financial information as at 31st July (provided by the Plough) there is no
immediate threat of closure. It is premature to judge how income levels will bounce back as
Covid restrictions are lifted and therefore it is difficult to make reasoned judgement about the
longer term viability of the Plough.

Page 62

5.

Recommendations
a) Torridge officers continue to work with the management of the Plough over the coming
months in relation to the business plan, to ascertain the ongoing viability of The Plough
in a post Covid-19 restriction world with a review to bringing an updated report to
Community and Resources for consideration

Supporting Recommendations
Consultations

Steve Hearse – Chief Executive
Sean Kearney – Planning and Development Manager
Staci Dorey - Monitoring Officer

Page 63

Agenda Item 12
1

TORRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL
HARBOUR BOARD MEETING
Virtual Meeting via Zoom - Remote meeting via Zoom
Thursday, 23 September 2021 - 2.30 pm

PRESENT

Councillor R Hicks (Chair)
Councillors K James

ALSO PRESENT

R Haste
P Brown
S Cawsey
T Vanstone

-

Operational Services Manager
Interim Harbour Master
Democratic Services Officer
Senior Electoral & Democratic Services
Officer

The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting.
Prior to the commencement of the meeting, Councillor Hicks advised Mr Puddy
from the Freshspring Trust, that his appointment onto the Harbour Board would be
going to Full Council for ratification in due course.
It was confirmed to Mr Puddy that the Survey Report he had forwarded had been
circulated to Members. Mr Puddy said he was grateful for the support Torridge
had given to the Freshspring Trust and would be providing regular reports on the
progress of the ship.
Councillor Hicks gave an update on his trip on the Pilot Boat with Councillor James
and praised the quality of the Authority’s staff on the work they carry out. Both
Councillor Hicks and Councillor James expressed their thanks to the staff for the
trip.

80.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Christie and Mr Tim Gibb.

81.

MINUTES
Resolved: That the minutes of the meeting held on the 24 June 2021 be agreed.

82.

ACTION LIST
Minute No. 8 - Estuary Sampling/Dredging

Page 64

2

The Operational Services Manager gave an initial update, reporting that following a
review of this item by the Interim Harbour Master slight progress had now been
made.
The aim is for Officers to investigate and to establish whether to make it a serious
project or to decide whether it will be viable or not.
The Interim Harbour Master gave the following update:
The situation is that the 1925 Bideford Harbour Act means that the Harbour
Authority is licensed or able to sell for capital gains any sand within the harbour
limits. The only action the Authority will have to do in order to commercially dredge
the seabed is to prove to the Marine Management Organisation (MMO) that it is not
contaminated and also permission from Natural England.
Mr Glover approached the Authority a few months ago to say he was interested in
trying to commercially work that part of the Bideford Harbour Act. This was
discussed with the Operational Services Manager, and it was agreed it would be
worth looking at.
Mr Glover took samples of the seabed in the statutory Harbour Authority area and
sent them to MMO – awaiting their reaction. Mr Glover has been advised that
before any decision or thoughts are brought before Harbour Board, he must have
plans in place on how he will execute it and what the effects would be in terms of
using the Quay to land the sand. It will then be presented to Harbour Board for a
decision to be made. It is hoped that by the next meeting the samples will be back
and will be presented to Members for approval or not.
Minute No. 37 – Storage ideas for the Harbour
Councillor Hicks mentioned his trip in the pilot boat the previous Tuesday looking at
Brunswick Wharf and the car park and enquired as to who owns the gap before the
Health Centre and whether the Council could make use of this land. The
Operational Services Manager advised the land is part of the Brunswick Wharf
development and will be developed in time.
The Operational Services Manager had discussed this matter with Nigel Evans who
had said Bideford Quay Harbour would not be a suitable area for a covered storage
building. This is a difficult issue, with uncertainty as to how far Officers can go with
this matter.
Following an enquiry from Councillor Hicks who asked if the refuse vehicle parking
area could be used for loading and unloading, the Operational Services Manager
said this was a matter to be discussed with the Economic Development Team. He
raised concerns with ships accessing the area, but if the Chair wished to progress
this matter, Officers can investigate. The Interim Harbour Master agreed with the
comments of the Operational Services Manager, stating that the issue is not the
viability of the Harbour, but the cargo that goes out from Appledore Quay and the
access for large trucks and storage of the cargo.

Page 65

3

Councillor James confirmed that Officers had looked at options and there have
been approaches to use the site. The above option to be put forward for
consideration. The site was purchased with the aim of providing the Authority with
a dock side site. Any matters/issues coming from Harbour Board can go forward.
The Operational Services Manager agreed to discuss the matter further with the
Head of Communities & Place and SMT and to investigate further viability options
and costings and to bring back a report to a future meeting.
83.

PUBLIC CONTRIBUTIONS
There were no public contributions.

84.

AGREEMENT OF AGENDA ITEMS PARTS I AND II
In the absence of the Head of Legal & Governance, the Part II item was deferred.

85.

URGENT MATTERS OF INFORMATION BROUGHT FORWARD WITH THE
PERMISSION OF THE CHAIRMAN AND THE COMMITTEE
There were no urgent matters brought forward.

86.

HARBOUR MASTERS QUARTERLY REPORT
Prior to the presentation of this item, the Interim Harbour Master clarified that
following discussion with the Operational Services Manager, it had been agreed
that for continuity and until a longer-term solution can be found he would continue
to act as the Interim Harbour Master.
The presence of a person in the Harbour Office had proved to be an asset to the
Harbour, allowing for enquiries to be dealt with in an effective and efficient manner.
The purpose of the report, presented by the Interim Harbour Master, was to report
to Members of the Bideford Harbour Board Working Group the activities and
commercial vessel movements in the Port since the last meeting held on 24 June
2021.
Members were informed of an amendment to the report, namely that there had
been one commercial vessel movement into Bideford Harbour in the reporting
period. The report had said no movements.
Port Security/Department for Transport – The Bideford Port Facility Security Plan
has recently gone out of date and requires a review. As this needs to be conducted
by a Port Facility Security Officer, the Interim Harbour Master had spoken to the
Harbour Master at Ilfracombe, who is a qualified Port Facility Security Officer, and
with the approval of the Department of Transport, the Port of Bideford will, for the
next few months, come under the Port of Ilfracombe.

Page 66

4

Councillor Hicks referred to the comments made by the Interim Harbour Master that
there are ledgers in the Harbour Office over 150 years old and asked that
Councillor Christie be given the opportunity to review them prior to them being
moved. Mr Hardaker also requested sight of the ledgers. The Operational
Services Manager agreed to meet with Kelly, Councillor Christie and Mr Hardaker
at the Harbour Office.
Mr Puddy reiterated the importance of the documents and asked that they be kept
in the local area, possibly the Maritime Museum in Appledore or Burton Art Gallery.
Repair works to the pilot boat – the Operational Services Manager confirmed the
quote for the works was in the region of £6,000 and these items are not negotiable
when repairing the boat. Members highlighted the importance of regular
maintenance works to ensure the safety of those persons on the pilot boat.
87.

PORT & HARBOUR ACCOUNTS
The Operational Services Manager gave an overview of the Harbour Board Finance
report for Quarter ending 30 June 2021.
Following a question from Mr Puddy, the Operational Services Manager
detailed how the ongoing maintenance costs and repairs for both the crane and
pilot boat are budgeted for.
The Interim Harbour Master had captured on video the ship “Caledonia” securing its
hatches and sailing out to sea. This video was shown to Members who said how
impressed they were with the time lapse video. The Operational Services Manager
advised that the Interim Harbour Master will be doing a further video capturing a
ship’s journey in, loading/unloading and the journey out.

88.

BIDEFORD HARBOUR - SAFETY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM
The Interim Harbour Master gave a verbal update as follows:
The Marine Safety Management System (MSMS) is the 11 risk assessments that
govern the marine based activities within the Ports and is then covered by the Port
Marine Safety Code which is Policy Statements and Method Statements. An audit
was undertaken by the Interim Harbour Master in January, with a further audit
planned for November to update on progress made since then.
At the next meeting it is anticipated the report will include that the audit had been
completed.

89.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS
Mr Hardaker asked if the Harbour Board could go back to face to face meetings.
Councillor Hicks stated it was very unlikely this would happen in the near future, but
suggested that an Officer attends at Mr Hardaker’s house to give tuition. The
Officer agreed to arrange a date.

Page 67

5

90.

PART II - CLOSED SESSION

91.

UPDATE ON ALLEGED BREACH OF EQUALITIES MEASURES
In the absence of the Head of Legal & Governance, this item was deferred to a
future meeting.

The meeting commenced at 14.30 and closed at 15.35.

Chair:

Date:

Page 68

Agenda Item 15

Bythe
of
virtue
Local
of paragraph(s)
Government Act
3 of1972.
Part 1 of Schedule 12A

Document is Restricted

Page 69

Bythe
of
virtue
Local
of paragraph(s)
Government Act
3 of1972.
Part 1 of Schedule 12A

Document is Restricted

Page 75

Agenda Item 16

Bythe
of
virtue
Lo

Document is Restricted

Page 76

